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| feel as though | have returned home,
because Hong Kong and The University of Hong Kong
are my intellectual birthplace.

Extract of the speech delivered by Dr Sun Yat-sen at
The University of Hong Kong,1923

For over a century, The University of Hong Kong (HKU), the oldest
tertiary education institution in the city, has been an integral part
of the city’s rich cultural heritage. HKU was established to provide
Western style education for the local Chinese community. It also
welcomed students from Canton and other Chinese cities,
Malaya, the Dutch East Indies, India and even Thailand in its early
years. Through subsequent decades, HKU has become a place of
internationalisation, innovation, inter-disciplinarity, and knowledge
exchange, and has made social contributions through its global
presence, its engagement with Mainland China, and its regional
significance.

The HKU campus includes an impressive number of historic
buildings, more than any other tertiary institutions in Hong Kong,
constructed on terraces made on the slopes of Pok Fu Lam with
connected courtyards, stairs, walkways, water features, etc. It
distinctly represents the combined works of nature and mankind,
and forms part of the more extensive Pok Fu Lam landscape. Each
historic building reflects the historical development of HKU and
more broadly the development of Hong Kong.

The year 2022 marks the 25th anniversary of the establishment of
the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region and also the 111th
anniversary of the founding of HKU. In this meaningful year, the
Commissioner for Heritage’s Office and the Antiquities and
Monuments Office (AMO) of the Development Bureau, together
with HKU, have jointly produced an audio guide programme
entitled “HKU Heritage Sights and Sites”. By scanning the QR code
or listening to the audio guide available on the website of AMO,
visitors may at their own pace learn about the past and
appreciate the exquisite design and craftsmanship of 13 declared
monuments / historic buildings in and around the HKU campus. This
booklet introduces briefly these 13 historic buildings, aiming to
enhance the visitors’ experience when browsing through the
buildings, whether onsite or offsite.
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Aerial photo of The University of Hong Kong, 1933.

© BERABREARAKFLE
CPAO Multimedia, The University of Hong Kong
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Domus Stat potens Academia,
Unde ab occiduis recens Ampliore flust plagis
Mox doctrina meatu.

Lyrics in University’s Anthem in Latin, 1912
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Strong stand the buildings of the University,
whence modern learning soon will flow from western lands
in more ample course.

Lyrics in University’s Anthem in English, 1912

The HKU campus was set on a landscape with hills at the south
and the harbour at the north. The University’s first building in the
main campus, the Main Building (completed in 1912; its exterior
is a declared monument), occupies a commanding position
and forms the heart of the campus. It set a high standard for all
subsequent buildings.

Within its first decade, the fundamental objectives of HKU were
consolidated, which included the transmission of knowledge
and development of personal character. Apart from attending
classes, students were required to reside in university hostels.
Three university hostels, i.e., Lugard Hall, Eliot Hall (its exterior is a
declared monument) and May Hall (its exterior is a declared
monument), were completed during the years 1913 -1915 on
higher ground within the campus. Opened in 1919, the Union
Building (currently known as the Hung Hing Ying Building; its
exterior is a declared monument) bridged the gap between
class attendance and mandatory residence by providing a
place for student-centred activities, and through its smart
design linked up with the Main Building and Bonham Road.

The period before the Second World War was one of vigorous
expansion, and included the construction of the Tang Chi
Ngong Building (its exterior is a declared monument) for the
School of Chinese and the Fung Ping Shan Building (its exterior
is a declared monument) for a Chinese library. This pair of
buildings responded seamlessly to the gentle curves of Bonham
Road. The post-war period was the time when long-term plans
for HKU were made. In response to a greater demand for
student accommodation, new residential facilities were
constructed, and Douglas Castle (then known as Nazareth)
was acquired and converted for use as University Hall (its
exterior is a declared monument).

The range of campus building types reflects the growth of the
University, while the range of styles indicates changing tastes in
regard to Hong Kong’s institutional architecture. Among the
buildings of HKU, the exteriors of seven have been declared as
monuments by the Antiquities Authority under the Antiquities
and Monuments Ordinance (Cap. 53). They contribute to the
University’s unique ambience.
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Main Building

R AIE B AR BRENE L S A MR - R11055) T
ER o 191268 T 0 BB OB BB A NEERE
BHBpEE —EStElE  AERARATEBEH
BB -

AREBAIE i M A MM 2SR SRR A% T Alfred Bryer XAt
ERATMERBEENM L ARERE - FAR2HEARANNM
AR » EEABAE BR=E i dZkE
HHHNEREATLBOEIE  HRIE - KENAEmF R
MERIERTPEGZ MnSEAE—% - AOPIBHMR - &
A 22 eI # = AT IUAE -

RENEE [AERE]E2E - REFRRBKALE - MR
erA - ARESWEEHE o ABRERETHEKN LR -
RBAERENEEN R - KBERAE  RERBEAZHRE
FRMRENHERE - KENFHARAER  ERERES
DRV RIRM AR ET R UREE -

FRiBR AKX

BARIEGE - 19124F
(P @)

TREESR PR EEHIZE
HEEA B AENHIT (1953-19644F) RES - Mm%
(FRCENRE)

BRI FIER - REBRIERIN T B RFTE SN - BT -
TSR KBS  BHEAE  BEE - TEHNHAE &2
PRAGRFEEES o FPILAESN1923F2 208 EREE
BREHR  ETMIEIEFBNERE A A AT EH o
194112 A FBRE AR - NP AERIER BB -
RORBKRIEEMKREIBTEBERARA - BRMB/LEMR -
RELDHH BWREE—F @ XEXBREWE - KEEHRR
ETE - BIFBRIEME - REESHBEERR - KENBIE
TRRAEIMSFFRER - £1946F10 1% TE A IRIERR ©

AERBENNFEMBE [B]FH - RKEEMNTR - Ml
BB —EERT » 19505 - XKIZRFEMIBENRE - 2T WE
R - B FEMBENX [A] FF - IETRHERFH
AL BRI R ETE - AKX B E - ZERRM
YR E R AR B RIRGT

RESRENEHMEPDAEGEL - KEENL1956F KRR
ERE - RE-BAEENABEREMMUL RSN G -
Pl B BRI S R ES

BRRBAILARBINER
19844F6 415 H 71| /AT E i
(ZEMINEBE SN RO



Fl

RERNEANER
Courtyard inside the Main Building

The Main Building is the oldest structure on the HKU main campus.
Construction began in 1910 and was completed in 1912. Sir
Hormusjee Mody, a distinguished Parsi businessman and
philanthropist in Hong Kong, donated the cost of the building. It
has been widely recognised for more than a century as an iconic
monument of tertiary education in Hong Kong.

The Main Building was designed by Alfred Bryer of Leigh & Orange,
a major architectural firm in Asia. It was designed with exuberant
neo-classical features while at the same time demonstrating
originality with a series of local adaptive elements. The
three-storey red-brick building supported by granite columns of
the lonic order is designed symmetrically around the central axis
of the clock tower and features pairs of turrets at both ends of the
principal facade. Pediments surmount the entrance portico and
the elevations of the east and west wings.

The extensive use of fair-faced red bricks has symbolic
significance as it references Britain’s “red-brick universities”, which
are cladded with bricks instead of granite, limestone, or
sandstone. As a humble building material, in contrast to dressed
stone, the use of red bricks is indicative of affordable and
outwardly democratic institutions. The building’s open verandahs
reflect the adaptation of a Western-style building to Hong Kong'’s
subtropical climate.

RERRAZ A BT
Courtyard inside
the Main Building

May the new light of wisdom ever shine out from the East!

Lyrics in University’s Anthem in English, 1912

A noble landmark (set) amid scenes of especial beauty

Edmund Blunden,British poet, Professor of English in HKU (1953 -1964)

The Main Building originally housed all the faculties of HKU,
including Arts, Engineering, and Medicine, as well as lecture
rooms, a library and administrative offices, and even a clinic and
temporary student hostel. Dr Sun Yat-sen delivered a speech at
the Great Hall on 20 February 1923. In his speech, he mentioned
both Hong Kong and HKU as his intellectual birthplace. During the
Battle of Hong Kong in December 1941, the building was
converted into a University Relief Hospital to treat both the
war-wounded and patients from Queen Mary Hospital. Parts of
the building were severely damaged and badly looted during the
war and the Japanese occupation period. The roof timber of the
Great Hall was taken down as fuel. University classes were
suspended during the war and were not resumed, until October
1946, when the restoration works, begun in late 1945, had been
completed.

FRRREEOARLAE - JRZIEHREZETE -
The Main Building after the Second World War, showing the damaged roof of
the Great Hall.

© TEALHER
University Archives, The University of Hong Kong

Originally, the Main Building had a footprint that resembled the
Chinese character “H” (literally “sun”) with the Great Hall
established in the middle and sandwiched by two courtyards. In
the 1950s, the building was extended with an addition of two new
courtyards and a further wing at the south, creating the current
footprint resembling the Chinese character “H” (literally “field”).
These additions, led by Professor Gordon Brown, the founding
Dean of the then newly established Faculty of Architecture,
followed the architectural language and building materials of the
original design.

In 1956, the Great Hall was renamed Loke Yew Hall in memory of
Dr Loke Yew, an early benefactor of HKU. It has been a venue for
hosting important academic and social events of the University,
such as degree-awarding congregations and high-table dinners.

The exterior of the Main Building of The University of Hong Kong was declared
a monument on 15 June 1984.

(Its exterior is open to the public.)

)
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Eliot Hall and May Hall
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The graduates of this University will go forth into China
with standards of life, with conceptions of duty,

with characters and ideals formed during their training
within these walls and the affiliated hostels.

Extract of the speech of Sir Frederick Lugard
at the opening ceremony of HKU, 1912

Eliot Hall and May Hall are respectively the second and the third
purpose-built student residential halls under the direct
management of HKU, and still stand on the main campus. Along
with two affiliated hostels (i.e. St. John’s Hall and Morrison Hall),
and Lugard Hall, the five halls could accommodate up to 270
students by the end of 1915. Eliot Hall is named after the first
Vice-Chancellor of HKU, Sir Charles Eliot, while May Hall is named
after the second Chancellor of HKU and the fifteenth Governor of
Hong Kong, Sir Francis Henry May. Eliot and May Halls were
opened in 1914 and 1915 respectively.

During the Battle of Hong Kong in December 1941, Eliot Hall was
converted into the University Relief Hospital to treat the
war-wounded and patients from Queen Mary Hospital, while May
Hall served as the main residence for medical staff and overseas
students. On New Year’s Day 1942, a secret graduation ceremony
was held at May Hall, and wartime degrees were granted to 14
medical students who had taken and passed their final
examinations at the time of the Japanese invasion. After the war,
Eliot Hall was reopened in 1946 and May Hall on 1 January 1948.
Eliot Hall was converted into a gymnasium in 1956 and renovated
as a male student residential hall in 1963.

et

RR—IL¥ - AESEEAEE  EEENMERE (B4FH) -
From the higher terrace to the lower terrace of the same slope were May
Hall, Eliot Hall and Lugard Hall (demolished).

© EEABRE
University Archives, The University of Hong Kong

In June 1966, a prolonged period of torrential rain caused a
massive landslide on an adjacent slope at the east side of the
halls. Eliot and May Halls were evacuated immediately for
extensive repair. Students were relocated temporarily to Lugard
Hall and other residential halls. The wardens’ quarters at the east
end of Eliot and May Halls had to be demolished. In 1969, the
University combined the three halls into one large residential
cluster named Old Halls and renamed the three halls as Lugard,
Eliot and May Wings.

1966 F BB E ILIEEE - #85
FREARRR R IR AR B EREE ©
After the severe landslide in
1966, two buttresses were
erected where the building had
to be partially demolished.

Whenever we had free time, we would walk up the Peak
along the back path of May Hall, past Morrison Hall, and
make a few bends to reach the Peak in less than an hour.
Looking at the sea from the Peak and taking a few breaths
of fresh air have become an addiction for me.

Professor Zhu Guang-gian
(Translated from Chinese)

i L A ERIRE
EAATIE G AR ©
Chinese-style ceramic
air grilles on the facade
contrast with the red brick

The Lugard Wing was demolished in 1992 for campus
development. The site is currently part of the Chong Yuet Ming
Amenities Centre and Chong Yuet Ming Chemistry Building, while
Eliot Wing and May Wing were reassigned their original names -
Eliot Hall and May Hall, respectively.

Although the Eliot and May Halls have been converted into
university offices and teaching facilities, their original use as
student residences speaks to the continuing hall culture of HKU.
They also reflect HKU’s vision of nurturing well-rounded students.

The design of these two university halls is similar and their sitting on
terraces creates an impressive ensemble. They are three-storey
red-brick buildings designed by Denison, Ram and Gibbs, a local
Hong Kong architectural firm. The facades are decorated with an
intriguing vocabulary of architectural elements, including curved
pediments over entrance doorways, rusticated columns, Doric
capitals, and cornices. Balconies with metal balustrades can be
found on both front and rear elevations. Such visual richness
reflects the Edwardian fascination with classicism. As a contrast to
the red brick wallls, Chinese-style glazed ceramic air grilles are
found on the front elevations. The pitched, double-tiled Chinese
roofs reflects the sensible integration of aspects of traditional
Chinese architecture with imported architectural styles.

The exteriors of Eliot Hall and May Hall were declared as monuments
on 16 November 2018.

(The exteriors of the buildings are open to the public.)
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Hung Hing Ying Building
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The main entrance of the Hung Hing Ying Building was originally at the north
elevation of the building.

© BEABERE
University Archives, The University of Hong Kong
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Rotunda on the upper floor of the building
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The central dome is adorned by a roof lantern.

The Hung Hing Ying Building was constructed with financial
support from Sir Catchick Paul Chater, a businessman and
Honorary Treasurer of HKU, Professor Gregory Paul Jordan, Acting
Vice-Chancellor, and Professor Cades Alfred Middleton Smith,
Dean of Engineering. It was officially opened by the then
Governor, Sir Reginald Stubbs, in February 1919. Originally
designed as the Union Building, it accommodated the Hong Kong
University Students’ Union from 1919 to 1946. After the Second
World War, the building was used for administrative purposes,
housing the Registry and the Office of the Bursar and Secretary to
the University Council, and was named the Administration
Building. In 1974, it was converted into the Senior Common Room
for the academic and senior administrative staff of HKU. In 1986,
the building was named after the late businessman Mr Hung Hing
Ying, in recognition of his and his family’s donations to HKU. Now,
it accommodates the Development and Alumni Affairs Office
and the HKU Foundation Chamber, etc.

The exterior of Hung Hing Ying Building was declared a monument
on 15 September 1995.

(Its exterior is open to the pubilic.)

Work a lot, but keep your minds and bodies elastic with a
reasonable amount of recreation.

Professor Middleton Smith

Designed by Little, Adams and Wood, the Hung Hing Ying Building
is a two-storey building in red bricks with wooden trusses. Its design
follows the dictates of Neo-classism, an appropriate style given its
proximity to the Main Building.

The central dome structure, or rotunda, adorned by a roof lantern
in the middle, with ornamental windows and a moulded cornice,
is the most impressive element. Two rectangular blocks project on
each side as wings. The north facade, facing Bonham Road,
where the original main entrance was located, has a portico at
the centre and a verandah at both sides on the lower floor, with
decorative metal railings on the upper floor. On the south
elevation facing the Main Building, there is an extended portico
with a segmental arched pediment which follows the curvature of
the dome. As seen in other campus buildings, the Chinese pitched
roofs are laid with double layered pan-and-roll tiling.

BEMAINETRAEE

The flower-shaped ornamental circular windows on both sides of stairs
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Tang Chi Ngong Building
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The Tang Chi Ngong Building in the 1930s

© BERBEEEFRE
University of Hong Kong Libraries, Special Collections,
The University of Hong Kong

RBINN RN GRS E R
Memorial plaque of the
opening in English outside
the building
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The timber boards on both sides of the corridor, inscribed with the names of
graduates of the School of Chinese.

The Tang Chi Ngong Building was funded by the philanthropist Mr
Tang Chi Ngong and designed to house the University’s School of
Chinese to promote the development of Chinese classics, history,
philosophy, literature and translation. The building was officially
opened by Sir Wiliam Peel, the then Governor of Hong Kong, on
28 September 1931. For 43 years, the School attracted students,
professors, and scholars who were dedicated to the field. Starting
from the 1975-76 academic year, the building was used by the
Department of Education. In 1982, the Centre of Asian Studies
(established in 1952 as the Institute of Oriental Studies) moved to
the building, where it remained until 2012. At present, the building
serves as the Jao Tsung-l Petite Ecole, a place for displaying the
art and artefacts of the late Professor Jao Tsung-l, a revered artist
and scholar who worked in the building between 1952 and 1968.

It is the donor’s wish that the building should be called
“The School of Chinese” and that to the teaching and study
of Chinese the first claim to its use should be assigned.

Plaque inside Tang Chi Ngong Building
(Translated from Chinese)

O srmeiimppE -

EH—ZEWYH : FFOKETF5E
*2HX - 2ER - ARBEARAREREHKE
Opening hours of Jao Tsung-| Petite Ecole:
Monday to Friday: 10:00 am - 5:00 pm
*Closed on Saturdays, Sundays, Public
Holidays and University Holidays
3917 5598
@ https://www.jaotipe.hku.hk/

The exterior of the Tang Chi Ngong Building
was declared a monument on 15 September 1995.

The University of Hong Kong should become during the
course of the 20th century a famous seat of Chinese
learning, to which men throughout the 18 provinces would
look ... as Englishmen look at Oxford and Cambridge ...
for authoritative guidance in the study of their language,
their literature, their history, their archaeology, their folklore,
their religious beliefs, and the whole fabric of their
civilisation.
Extract of Sir Cecil Clementi’s address
to the Royal Empire Society in London, 1935

The Tang Chi Ngong Building, which overlooks Bonham Road from
its position on sloping ground, shows aspects of classicism and Art
Deco. The three-storey, flat-roofed building is symmetrical in
elevation, with its exterior finished with Shanghai plaster. Although
restrained in decoration, the front elevation displays such
classically-inspired features as Doric-style mouldings, the use of
triglyphs and metopes in the entrance dentil cornice, and a
horizontal band of Greek key-pattern fretwork between the
ground and first floors. Five balconies, one centrally-placed as
part of the building’s frontispiece and two on each side of the
front facade, enliven ample windows and seem to provide
ceremonial access to the outside. Decorative metal grillwork
lightens the balcony balustrades and echoes the pattern on the
panels of the main door. The flagpole on the roof, positioned
centrally on a low pediment, shows the influence of Art Deco, a
popular style at the time the building was constructed. The use of
the letter “V” in place of “U” as in “VNIVERSITY” can be found on
the front facade, on the plaques inside the building which
commemorate its opening and at the building’s gateway on
Bonham Road, etc. The two letters are interchangeable in Latin,
and this reflects a common practice at the time when the building
was constructed.
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Fung Ping Shan Building
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Rear elevation of
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Fung Ping Shan Library in the 1950s
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The efforts of Master Fung in promoting ancient culture are
great and unique in this world. The construction of this
grand library to house valuable Chinese books will enhance
the development of a rich collection from generation to
generation. Mr Fung’s character has reached so
extraordinary a level that his merits and virtues as a
cultivated gentleman will be everlasting. Now with the
newly completed library named after him, Mr Fung Ping
Shan will become immortal.

Professor Hsu Ti-shan, 1935
(Translated from Chinese)

Mr Fung Ping Shan, an entrepreneur who co-founded the Bank of
East Asia, wrote a letter to Sir Wiliam Hornell, the fourth
Vice-Chancellor of HKU, in 1929, expressing his wishes to donate
HK$100,000 for constructing a Chinese library for HKU. After further
discussions with the University, Mr Fung Ping Shan agreed to
increase the donation and be responsible for the cost of
stationery, lightings, fans, furniture and bookshelves, etc. for the
library. The construction work of the library (currently the Fung Ping
Shan Building) finally began in 1931 and was completed in 1932.
The building was named to commemorate the entrepreneur’s
generosity. The purpose of the library was to support the
newly-founded School of Chinese by collecting books related to
Chinese Studies, with a focus on arts, culture, history and literature.
Since that time, the Fung Ping Shan Library has served not only
HKU and the Hong Kong community, but also scholars from
different parts of the world.

During the Battle of Hong Kong in December 1941, the building
was converted into the University Relief Hospital to treat the
war-wounded and patients from Queen Mary Hospital. In 1953,
the Museum of Chinese Art and Archaeology was established,
with exhibitions being held in one of the rooms of the Fung Ping
Shan Library. In 1962, the growing collections of the Fung Ping
Shan Library were transferred to the newly constructed Main
Library of the University to cater for the needs of students and
scholars. The library building was converted into the Fung Ping
Shan Museum and was officially opened in 1964. Since its
beginning, the museum has focused on collecting and exhibiting
Chinese antiquities such as bronzes, ceramics, paintings, and
pottery, with objectives that align with the teaching and
promotion of Chinese art and culture.

The museum was renamed the University Museum and Art Gallery
in 1994. In 1996 an adjacent new wing, named the T. T. Tsui
Building, was opened with a linking path connecting with the
Fung Ping Shan Building.

Designed by Leigh & Orange, the Fung Ping Shan Building is a
three-storey red-brick building articulated by evenly distributed
light-coloured decorative features, including pilasters, window
architraves, pediments and a moulded cornice and parapet on
its main facade. The building’s symmetrical fan-shaped plan
includes an atrium in the middle and wings for side rooms. The
atrium features a two-storey gallery supported on octagonal
columns and lit by a prominent skylight.

5L EE RV HR RS
Interior view of the Fung Ping Shan Library in the early period of
establishment

© BERBIERE

University Archives, The University of Hong Kong
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The gallery at the atrium is supported by octagonal columns.

(O BBREXIGMERKERE :
EH-ZEHN: FFIR30HE FF6k
EHiH : TFIRETF6k
*EH—  ARBRARASRARE
Opening hours of the University Museum and Art Gallery:
Tuesday to Saturday: 9:30 am - 6:00 pm
Sunday: 1:00 pm - 6:00 pm
*Closed on Mondays, Public Holidays and University Holidays
22415500
& nttps:/7umag.hku.hksvisit/

The exterior of the Fung Ping Shan Building was declared a monument
on 16 November 2018.
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Courtesy of the Public Records Office of the Government Records Service

REENEG —IRBEBIEER - TAECREYE  BR_(A2E -
TR NEERRERE  ©AERER  XEEFEIRN
s EIRARA LR 1) © A EeRe S EE P MESEE
B NEENEREERE  NEETHENEDERZLTE
EXMAOEEMESNHER - MIWRHTE - MEXEEZE LR
NEENEE  B2E T REMEENRN °

REEHE T EFLR
FAOZEH [EAER]
The main facade
and the mysterious
statue at the main
entrance staircase




University Hall is the oldest building owned by HKU. It was built
around 1861 by Scottish businessman Douglas Lapraik as his
headquarters and residence, and named “Douglas Castle”. The
building was sold to the French Society of Foreign Missions in 1894.
The society undertook repairs and addition works to the building.
Accommodation for the clergy, as well as a chapel, crypt, and
printing house were built. The building was renamed “Nazareth”.
After the Second World War, the activities of the French Society of
Foreign Missions diminished considerably, and Nazareth was given
up in 1953. At the time, as a result of increased demand, HKU was
looking for residential facilities for students and staff members to
the south of Pok Fu Lam. HKU acquired the castle for use as an
undergraduate residential hall in 1954. In September 1956,
Nazareth was renamed “University Hall’, and became a
residential hall for male students.

EANNEE  BEMERE -
The chapel has been used as the Dining Hall.

The cast iron spiral staircase

Within these walls none is a stranger.

Motto of University Hall

University Hall is a three-storey building which blends Gothic and
Tudor architectural features. On the building’s exterior, there are
verandahs with Tudor arches on the first and second floors,
parapets and pinnacles on the roof, and corner towers. A granite
staircase leads to the first floor of the dormitory block. A pair of
mysterious animal statues stand at the foot of the staircase, in
Chinese called “FARf&” (literally means “neither fish nor fowl!”).
Legend has it that students who touch them would fail their
examinations.

Inside the building, a cast iron spiral staircase, made in Paris,
connects all three floors. The chapel, which now serves as the
Dining Hall, has a tied timber beam roof providing support for the
pitched construction; Chinese tiles are used to cover the roof.
Gothic windows with traceries and a rose window are other
important architectural features in the chapel. The Common
Room below the chapel was once a crypt. Here, massive
columns, bold imposts, and sturdy ribbed vaults support the
loading of the chapel above and provide a serene and dignified
atmosphere.

REZE AN B ZINE
Patterned floor tiles inside
the University Hall

The exterior of the University Hall was declared a monument
on 15 September 1995.

(Its exterior is open to the public.)
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Pok Fu Lam Waterworks Structures
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Since the 1860s, water supply systems, including reservoirs, have
been constructed on Hong Kong Island to meet the demand for
freshwater. The completion of the West Point Filters in the 1890s
enhanced the hygiene of water supply.

The Elliot Pumping Station and Filters were first constructed in the
1910s to meet the increasing demand for water at the western
end of Hong Kong Island. In the 1930s, these facilities functioned
as auxiliary waterworks of the Aberdeen Reservoir under the
Aberdeen Valley Water Scheme, expanding their scale for filtering
and distributing water to the western part of Hong Kong Island.

The staff had to monitor the water quality closely and operate the
fiters and the pumps, and so accommodation for them was
constructed in the vicinity. Nowadays, some of these waterworks
structures have been given a new life through thoughtful
adaptive reuse.

PR B 7K

West Point Filters

FIRBKRER
West Point Filters in the past

© BEBARERE
University Archives, The University of Hong Kong
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According to historical documents and maps, the West Point
Filters were originally called the “Pokfulam Filter Beds”. When
completed and put into operation in the 1890s, the facility was
equipped with four filter beds, their filtration materials consisting of
layers of coarse broken stones, stone cubes, coarse sand and fine
sand. In 1903, two more filter beds were added. The bungalow
and two workmen’s quarters are what remains of the historic
waterworks complex of the West Point Filters.

(31
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Bungalow

© BERBENRAKEBE
CPAO Multimedia, The University of Hong Kong
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The Bungalow of the West Point Filters, first constructed in the
1890s, served as the Watchman’s House for the West Point Filters.
The building has been used as government quarters, the last
household moving out in 2006.

The Bungalow has a unique character amongst the buildings of
the West Point Filters. It is a single-storey structure that belongs to a
building type influenced by the Indian bungalow, which, in its
modified form, became an especially popular housing type in
Britain during the late nineteenth century. The L-shaped verandah
at the north and east elevations is atypical, demonstrating the
adaptability of the housing type to local conditions.

The Bungalow’s masonry foundation is made of local granite,
while the building itself was built of bricks. Ventilation openings
provide for air circulation, an important function given Hong
Kong’s humidity and the threat of termite infestation. The main
part of the roof is pitched and laid with double-layered Chinese
pan-and-roll tiles. The chimney indicates that the Bungalow was
equipped with fireplace to keep the house warm in cold weather.

FREETR EMZER
The chimney on the roof of
the Bungalow
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The granite balustrade and balusters at the verandah

FIRIE/KRE) B i20106F 12 A21 R B R K E B 8T A — B L B
The Bungalow of the West Point Filters was accorded a Grade 1 status by
the Antiquities Advisory Board on 21 December 2010.
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Two Workmen’s Quarters
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The two Workmen'’s Quarters of the West Point Filters were accorded
Grade 2 status by the Antiquities Advisory Board on 18 December 2009.

1890s to the first half of the twentieth century

The two Workmen’s Quarters were constructed at a later period
than the Bungalow, probably between the 1890s and the first half
of the twentieth century. In the past, they provided
accommodation for Chinese workers. They are both single-storey
pitched-roof brick buildings with Chinese double-layered
pan-and-roll tiles.

The one at the east, currently painted white, was originally
intended to be an extension of the Bungalow, accommodating its
kitchen and toilets while also serving as quarters for Chinese
workers.

The one further to the west is in fair-faced red brick laid in Flemish
bond. The alternating stretchers and headers provide the strength
required for structural walls. The building housed the workmen’s
quarters and a kitchen for Chinese workers.
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Elliot Pumping Station and Filters

BUT RN EE ST st /K NENE I F R - FHRO19105F
ER&sTEI @ e kR - ERERETEEESARRHIER
B B - TREHN QB IDERM B WA E 218 6 FZ2KE
i - FFHRBRIIAFR MG & A - 78 MKk OBk
M ERE TiZhe AN AR FRFA - WH1919FK T -

BEEp A IBEMEBEMEIEREE - FOE KL EKBRE
IR R HEER AR FA1993F = | HiE 1 » BB KTE2012F 1872 -
PR AA S RFRENZEEASIF -

To meet the increasing demand for water at the western end of
Hong Kong Island, construction of new waterworks was scheduled
for as early as the 1910s, the period of HKU’s decade of expansion.
A suitable location was finally identified at the site of the former
Eliot Battery alongside Pok Fu Lam Road, which had been
surrendered by the British Army in 1914. The construction of the
Elliot Pumping Station and Filters started at the same year and was
completed in 1919.

However, as time passed and with the wider review of water
supply arrangement, the water treatment facilities of the Elliot
Pumping Station and Filters finally ceased operation in 1993. With
the expansion of HKU in 2012, the site was included as part of the
Centennial Campus development proposal.

19602 19705 (X 5 M 78 [ Hh /K 1t K BRI
Aerial view of Elliot Pumping Station and Filters in the 1960s to 1970s

© BEARBEARAREHE
CPAO Multimedia, The University of Hong Kong
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Workmen’s Quarters
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The double-layered, Chinese pan-and-roll tiles roof of the Workmen’s Quarters
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The Workmen’s Quarters of the Elliot Pumping Station and Filters

was accorded a Grade 3 status by the Antiquities Advisory Board
on 22 January 2010.

The Workmen’s Quarters was built between 1918 and 1919 as
quarters for the Chinese staff. The one-storey red brick structure
with a rectangular plan was designed to be a practical building,
providing basic living accommodation. It comprised a coolies’
room, a watchman’s room and an office, together with
associated bathrooms, kitchens and latrine facilities. The
verandah on the south elevation is an Anglo-Indian feature. Its
timber rafters are embedded in the brick wall on one end, and
supported by a plate resting on cast-iron columns on the other.
The roof of the verandah is a seamless extension of the main
pitched roof, which is laid with double-layered, Chinese
pan-and-roll tiles, an indication of local adaptation. This type of
design for small-scale staff quarters was common in Hong Kong
during the 1910s and 1920s.

The Workmen’s Quarters is now known as HKU Visitor Centre, which
was opened in 2014.

TABEEMALEIEEEAER

The red-brick wall and chimney of the Workmen’s Quarters
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Opening hours of HKU Visitor Centre:

Monday to Saturday: 9:30 am - 5:00 pm

Sunday: 11:00 am - 5:00 pm

*Closed on Public Holidays and University Holidays
3917 7853
@ https.//www.visitorcentre.hku.hk/
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Senior Staff Quarters
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The “horned” ends to
the hip ridges at the
Run Run Shaw Heritage
House
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The Senior Staff Quarters of the Elliot Pumping Station and Filters

was accorded a Grade 2 status
by the Antiquities Advisory Board on 18 December 2009.

SRBEESER
The Senior Staff Quarters in the past

© BEBARBEARAKERE
CPAO Multimedia, The University of Hong Kong

The two-storey Senior Staff Quarters was built in 1925 as quarters for
site managers. It is an excellent example of the fusion of the
Western Arts and Crafts style and Chinese architectural
characteristics. Locally-quarried, rough-honed granite is used for
both the walls and the chimneys. The French windows and
balcony on the primary elevation intend to fully utilise nature and
to provide more immediate access from the interior to the exterior.
Similar to other local British buildings, the pitched roofs use Chinese
pan-and-roll tiles. Also in the Chinese style are the distinctive
“horned” ends to the hip ridges, which are found on the roofs of
the porch and balcony.

Originally, the interior layout of each floor was largely identical. On
the east side, there was a spacious four-roomed flat with
fireplaces for senior staff members. Either a verandah or balcony
provided sweeping views of the harbour to the north — or hill views
to the south. Rooms at the adjoining servants’ quarters on the west
were much smaller. There were separate staircases for senior staff
and servants to access the spaces.

The Senior Staff Quarters is now known as the Run Run Shaw
Heritage House, and since 2013, it has been used by Hong Kong
University Press as a bookshop and office.

(O BBRBRITHEERRIEH :
EN—ZEHA : FFI0RETF5H
*2HN - B ARBREARASRAKE
Opening hours of the bookshop of Hong Kong University Press:
Monday to Friday: 10:00 am - 5:00 pm
*Closed on Saturdays, Sundays, Public Holidays and University Holidays
3917 7801
@ https://hkupress.hku.hk/hkup_bookshop
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Treatment Works Building

EKER B IR 1930E 19314 [ - LASE BV E B A HKEHEIAY
BIE o BKBEE BB CRIZFIS L B ERABKES
RREFIEEAE ) - EERFEZ BREF IMARE FRikis)
A - aFEY  BARNKERX -

KRS B =B e L R E S AR EE4ERK - IRIEERE
ZE—HET - BMERERMMER AR  BERTHEN
BRIFEE 2 - AIIEER) - SEEMGINSIAEE - BETREE
FRARMMER - EVEPRA—IREE [HKW.W. 1930 -1931 ]
Tk - BREENEEFH o

HARKBECFLEE  EREARANRE R - W%
RIEDARIFTE - BREAIERBEENEBR TV oMEEERE -

BKMR R SEIREUR T REMNEEF) o
The year of construction is shown on the decorative panel at the front
elevation of the Treatment Works Building.

The Treatment Works Building was constructed between 1930 and
1931 to supplement the operation of the Aberdeen Valley Water
Scheme. Built as a filtration plant, the Treatment Works Building
aimed at increasing the speed and capacity of the filtration
system by mechanical processes and the dosing of chemicals.
Chemicals, such as sulphate of alumina, lime and chlorine, were
added to the water during the process for coagulation and
sterilisation to enhance the drinking water quality.

The building is a three-storey Chemical House with a two-storey
operating gallery. A row of filter beds extends along each side of
the operating gallery. As a utilitarian reinforced-concrete
structure, the regular framing of columns and beams coupled with
red-brick infill panels are appealing. Decorative panels adorn the
roof parapet, with the central panel at the front elevation incised
with “H.K.W.W. 1930 -1931”, indicating the period during which this
building was constructed.

Although the building is no longer in service, the original
equipment, including pipes, pumps, and valves, is still intact.
Visitors are able to appreciate the building from a landscaped
platform that spans the site.

74 88 7 St S KRR KBRS 742010461 A 220
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The Treatment Works Building of the Elliot Pumping Station and Filters

was accorded a Grade 3 status by the Antiquities Advisory Board
on 22 January 2010.

(This historic building is not open to the public.)




{& a0
Epilogue

ERRHITRREFERBRHSEBREFXIRE - RE
M ABIRE M)y - RS DA CIEE L EENINGE L Y=
BEE RESERBRR) RIE (B EHEKD) 7 EE
HiE  RANECELYEAZ B SN o SRR ESL B
BETEENASAE - MR T ERMASUERE

BERBXWREZENERMNET BN B AHRKE RRUE
W IE - BeRELEE| BZFEE  Eee/Mi+  &@hmE
IR AKE AR E R AR B0 R 258 - IRE MBEE I
% BEMBERE -

BABMOREABHESLEE LB LRE - BEREBEN
R ERCBRRE—# I o BARBELZENEE
ERREBERSINMBHEBRENER L - UARH Y
ENER

AARETZFLENTT - BEERRAEEE - KRENZL

FE2ERETHER - NP OTEEY - BESXK AKX
1912FHRMBH AL EE

LBEOKERRE

The Development Bureau of the Hong Kong SAR Government is
grateful for the support of HKU in conserving its historic buildings. In
and around the campus, there are already seven historic buildings,
the exteriors of which have been declared as monuments under
the Antiquities and Monuments Ordinance by the Antiquities
Authority (currently the Secretary for Development), and another
six historic buildings have been graded by the Antiquities Advisory
Board. These historic buildings help to create a distinct ambience
in the University as well as the cultural landscape of Pok Fu Lam.

The Commissioner for Heritage’s Office and AMO of the
Development Bureau and HKU have jointly produced the audio
guide programme, “HKU Heritage Sights and Sites”, which,
complemented by this booklet, aims at encouraging visitors to
appreciate at their leisure the historic buildings in the campus and
its vicinity, their beauty and history, as well as their ambience.

HKU has long been committed to conserving its built heritage,
from careful maintenance and sensitive restoration to thoughtful
adaptive reuse. It understands the value of its historic buildings
and how they help create an attractive and unique learning
environment. It understands, too, that the buildings are valued by
the broader community.

The HKU campus is hot a static place. Its original core of historic
buildings has been continuously enlarged as new programmes
are developed and new centres are established. The line of the
University’s Anthem is as relevant today as it was in 1912:

Domus Stat potens Academia
(Strong stand the buildings of the University)
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All visitors to HKU campus should make an online
reservation to visit the campus up to 14 days in
advance. No registration is needed for entry on public
holidays in Hong Kong, Sundays, or weekdays before
8am or after 6:30pm.

For updated information on tourist flow management
and to make reservations, please visit HKU’s website:

https://www.hku.hk/visitors/visiting-hku.html

Please treasure the declared monuments and historic
buildings, visit leisurely, respect users of the buildings
and keep the campuses clean and quiet during
your visit.

Please observe the general rules and regulations of the
University and avoid causing any disturbance to
members of the University and its activities during your
visit to HKU campuses.

Please read this booklet beforehand to plan your visit
in advance.

Some of the declared monuments and historic buildings
are not open to the public. You may appreciate them
from the outside.

The opening hours of the declared monuments or
historic buildings open to the public are different,
subject to changes and may be temporarily
suspended. Please refer to the websites of the
respective management bodies of HKU when planning
your visit.

Please abide by traffic regulations and take care of the
accompanying children or seniors during your visit.

For enquiries, please call the Antiquities and Monuments
Office on 2208 4488 or HKU on 2859 2111.

Public Transport

Please browse https://www.hkemobility.gov.hk to search for the
routes of different transportation modes for pre-trip planning.

The above information is for reference only, and is subject to

change in accordance with the announcement of the relevant
organisations.
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